BEAUFORT COUNTY
DESIGN REVIEW BOARD (DRB) MINUTES
August 2, 2018, Grace Coastal Church, 15 Williams Drive, Okatie, SC

Members Present: James Atkins, J. Michael Brock, Sallie Bridgwater, Brad Hill and H. Pearce Scott

Members Absent: Peter Brower and Donald Starkey

Staff Present: Nancy Moss, Planner and Heather Spade, Planning Assistant

Guests: Thomas Michaels, SM7 Design, LLC; Taylor Reeves, Ward Edwards Engineering; Ashley Ingram,
Contractor & Developer; Tom Davis, Harvey & Battey, P. A.; Beau Hodges, Adams Outdoor Advertising;
Tom Parker, PDG Architects; Zenos Morris, Court Atkins Architects; Judd Carstens, WJK, Ltd.; and Patrick
Trisler, WJK, Ltd.

1.

2.

CALL TO ORDER: Chairman Atkins called the meeting to order at 2:30 pm.

MINUTES: Chairman Atkins asked if there were comments on the June 7, 2018 minutes. No
comments were made. Ms. Bridgwater motioned to approve the minutes as written. Mr. Atkins
seconded to approve. Motion carried.

PUBLIC COMMENT: There was no public comment.
NEW BUSINESS:

A. Okatie Center — Home 2 Suites - Conceptual:
Ms. Moss gave the project background. Thomas Michaels, the project architect, made the
presentation for the project. Mr. Michaels presented a new conceptual sketch of the front building
elevation for the Board’s input. He stated that the sketch was a modified version of the prototype
design originally submitted to the Board and that Lowcountry design elements and materials were
added to better conform to the PUD design requirements.

Mr. Hill had no comments.
Ms. Bridgwater had no comments.

Mr. Scott stated that the top of the building looked good visually and asked that the material type
be defined. He suggested that siding versus stucco be added.

Mr. Brock liked the conceptual sketch and was interested in the tower element and how it ties in to
the materials.

Mr. Atkins asked what the height of the building was. Ms. Moss said that it was approximately 45’
tall. Mr. Atkins said that based upon the sketch presented, the architecture was headed in the right
direction. He said to continue to develop the architecture and that the applicant should submit a
preliminary review of the architecture, with all elevations ready, prior to final.

Mr. Hill made a motion to approve this project for conceptual review with the following conditions:
o The revised architectural sketch submitted at the DRB meeting received positive reaction from

Design Review Board Page 10of4 August 2, 2018



the Board. The Board indicated that the new conceptual sketch was headed in the right direction
and was much improved over the first prototype architecture drawings submitted for review.

e Continue to develop the architecture: identify the facade material types, formalize the tower
element detail, provide elevations of all four sides and provide better window, door & trim
detailing.

o Verify that the building height, including the parapets, do not exceed 50°.

Mr. Scott seconded the motion.

The Board cautioned Mr. Michaels and said that if he proceeded with a more “final” submission,
that there could be significant rework without the board reviewing the “sketch” with more refined
detail.

Motion carried.

B. The Ingram Center Redevelopment — Bluffton — Final:

Ms. Moss gave the project background. Ashley Ingram, the Developer and General Contractor and
Tom Dauvis, the applicant’s Attorney, made the presentation for the project. Mr. Davis said that
there was a 30’ view easement in front of this site along Highway 278 to a billboard just east of
this project. He said that the landscaping proposed within the view easement, and part of the
landscape plan under review by the DRB, is acceptable to the billboard owner who was in
attendance at the meeting. Mr. Davis said it was time sensitive to get a final determination on the
landscaping in the billboard view easement, pro or con, to meet the 30-day window with escrow.
Mr. Ingram said that he was working with his cousins on this project and asked the Board for their
comments.

Mr. Brock commented on the Plant Schedule and said that the building foundation plant size should
be increased from a 3-gallon to a 7-gallon container. Tom Davis said that the billboard owner
approved the landscape plan currently under review by the DRB. Mr. Brock said he had no
problem with the plantings between the front parking lot and highway 278 except that it was a little
difficult to read. Ms. Bridgwater stated that the plantings around the dumpster should be increased
to a 7-gallon container size also. Mr. Brock agreed.

Mr. Scott had no landscape comments. He said that the architecture looked a lot better than what
was there, but that the building had too many facade materials. In addition, the towers looked too
tall and he did not like the blank shake wall. Mr. Scott said that he wanted to see a shell plan and
window/door trim details for the duplex.

Ms. Bridgwater said that there was too much going on with the building facade and wanted to know
why the monument sign was shown in the driveway. Mr. Ingram said that the sign would be placed
in the landscape area next to the road and would be better delineated at final.

Mr. Hill said that he was fine with the front Highway 278 buffer plantings, except for the Indian
hawthorn plantings proposed. He said they tend to get diseased and recommended they be changed
out with another plant species. Mr. Hill asked if there would be a lot of grading work done and to
show where the underground stormwater chamber would be located. He suggested that the building
be shifted to avoid the extensive tree removals along the east property line. Mr. Hill asked that
they justify the removal of the red oaks, pine trees and water oaks because he was not convinced
they should be removed. Mr. Hill commented on the architecture and said that seven different
facade materials were too much.

Design Review Board Page 2 of 4 August 2, 2018



Mr. Atkins said that he would rely on the Board’s landscape architect’s expertise and echoed that
a better attempt at tree preservation, and cited the 13” Live oak and 14” laurel oak as examples,
within the buffer must be done. He said that the building shape was a 40°x100” rectangle and that
architect was trying too hard with the facade materials. He added that there was a lack of overhangs
and unarticulated facades. Mr. Atkins said to simplify the architecture, to step the building back
between the units to provide shade and shadow and that a lot more detailing was needed.

Mr. Hill made a motion to table this project with the following comments:

« The front Highway 278 buffer planting as shown on the landscape plan presented is acceptable

to the DRB with the exception of the Indian Hawthorn shrubs and extensive tree removals

proposed. Please substitute a more disease-resistant shrub variety for the Indian Hawthorne

shrub and do not remove the healthy trees. The Board is not convinced that all of the trees

proposed for removal should come out and a better attempt should be made to preserve the

existing trees.

Simplify the architecture and reduce the number of facade materials.

 Provide more building articulation and avoid long, blank facades (i.e. blank shake facade at 2nd

story).

Extend the roof overhangs out further.

« Provide more shade and shadow with the physical shape of the rectangular building (i.e. step the

building back between the units) to provide more visual interest.

The towers look too tall in relation to the main building height.

Provide a shell floor plan of the duplex building and submit window & door trim details.

 Show the underground stormwater storage facility on the site plan.

All building foundation and dumpster plantings should be 7-gallon size versus 3-gallon container

size. This change should be reflected on the Plant Schedule.

» Show the location of the monument sign so it is placed in the landscaped area and not within the
driveway.

Mr. Atkins seconded the motion.

Motion carried.

5. OLD BUSINESS:

A.

First Scots Presbyterian Church of Beaufort — Lady’s Island — Final:

Ms. Moss gave the project background. Tom Parker, the project Architect, made the presentation.
He said that the ballfield wasn’t a formal field but that it was an open space for play. Mr. Parker
stated that the design was modified and all of the windows were adjusted so the window rhythm
was consistent on the interior within the Nave. He said that the rear portion was designed to appear
as an addition which was built at two different eras and that the colors were the same as the front
of the church.

Mr. Scott said that it was an improved design and that he liked it.

Ms. Bridgwater had no comments.

Mr. Hill had no comments.

Mr. Brock said he liked the landscape plan.

Mr. Atkins said that it was a good looking project.

Mr. Scott made a motion to approve the project as presented. Mr. Brock seconded the motion.

Motion carried.

Design Review Board Page 3 of4 August 2, 2018



B. Palm Casual Patio Furniture — Bluffton — Final:

Mr. Atkins recused himself from the meeting. Ms. Moss gave the project background. Zenos
Morris, the project Architect, made the presentation. Mr. Morris said that there would be signage
on the building and that a monument sign was not proposed at this time. He stated that if a
monument sign were designed in the future, it would complement the building and be placed on
the northeast corner of the property. Mr. Morris said that the rear 8’ foundation buffer would cause
an unloading problem for the delivery trucks so they would request approval to remove the
foundation buffer on the south elevation.

Mr. Hill said that he was good with the design.

Ms. Bridgwater stated that she was good with the design.

Mr. Scott said that the widened overhangs were acceptable.

Mr. Brock commented that project had an extensive landscape plan.

Mr. Morris stated that the parking lot light fixture shown on the plans would be changed out with
a shoe box type light fixture. He stated that the south foundation buffer shown on the landscape
plan was 6’ wide and that the building was shifted back in order to keep the outdoor display area
out of the 50’ highway buffer.

Mr. Hill and Mr. Scott asked that the roof ladder be moved from the back to the west corner so it
would be out of view.

Mr. Hill asked how tall the and how far the door awning stuck out from the building. Mr. Morris
said that the awning was approximately 9 tall and stuck out approximately 3’ from the building.
Mr. Hill said that because the awning would restrict the truck from maneuvering in the back, he
suggested a compromise with a 3’ wide foundation buffer on the east and west ends of the back
elevation and that a 5’ wide trellis be centered in the 8 wall space at each back corner with
confederate jasmine vines at the base.

Mr. Hill made a motion to approve this project with the following conditions:

+ Relocate the roof ladder from the south elevation to the west elevation.

* Provide a 3 wide foundation buffer on the west and east side of the south elevation. Install a
5” wide trellis which is centered within the 8 wall space at the four (4) back corners. Add 3-
gallon confederate jasmine vine plants at the base of each trellis.

* Revise the lighting plan for the shoe box lighting fixture substitution and confirm that the
lighting levels meet Code.

« If the applicant elects to install a monument sign in the future, the sign structure will need to be
approved for Staff DRB approval before a sign permit applicant can be approved.

Mr. Scott seconded the motion.
Motion carried.
6. OTHER BUSINESS: Mr. Atkins returned to the meeting room. He said the next scheduled meeting

was at 2:30 p.m. on Thursday, September 6, 2018 at the Grace Coastal Church, 15 Williams Drive,
Okatie, SC 29909.

7. ADJOURNMENT: Mr. Brock made a motion to close the meeting and Mr. Scott seconded the
motion. The meeting was adjourned at 3:50 p.m.

Design Review Board Page 4 of 4 August 2, 2018



